
City Plan Commission

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Any questions about items on this meeting are to be directed to 

the Community and Economic Development Department, 

920-832-6468.

Council Chambers, 6th Floor3:30 PMWednesday, July 13, 2022

1. Call meeting to order

2. Roll call of membership

3. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

22-0866 City Plan Minutes from 6-8-22

City Plan Minutes 6-8-22.pdfAttachments:

4. Public Hearings/Appearances

22-0867 Special Use Permit #7-22 to conform and expand an automobile sales and 

display lot located at 1608 East Wisconsin Avenue (Tax Id #31-1-2605-00, 

#31-1-2609-00, #31-1-2607-00, and #31-1-1962-00), as shown on the 

attached maps and per attached plan of operation, to run with the land 

subject to the conditions in the attached staff report and approve attached 

Resolution (Associated with Action Item #22-0868)

ClassIIPublicHearingNoticeNewspaper_MidwesternWheels_SUP#7-22.pdf

PublicHearingNoticeNeighborhood_MidwesternWheels_SUP#7-22.pdf

Attachments:

5. Action Items

22-0868 Request to approve Special Use Permit #7-22 to conform and expand an 

automobile sales and display lot located at 1608 East Wisconsin Avenue 

(Tax Id #31-1-2605-00, #31-1-2609-00, #31-1-2607-00, and 

#31-1-1962-00), as shown on the attached maps and per attached plan of 

operation, to run with the land subject to the conditions in the attached staff 

report and approve attached Resolution (2/3 vote of Common Council 

required for approval)

StaffReport_MidwesternWheels_SUP_For07-13-22.pdfAttachments:

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 7/8/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21416
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=98e8657d-3b68-483a-a364-fb977cde61ba.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21417
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4a414b8e-a800-417e-bf30-48313fec67e1.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a4187314-8aee-4da7-93c6-d8291a50a164.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21418
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3b27dd70-599d-4341-a8fa-ae8f649b7f2e.pdf


July 13, 2022City Plan Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

22-0869 Request to approve Certified Survey Map #21-22, which crosses a plat 

boundary, to combine four adjacent parcels (Tax Id #31-1-2605-00, 

#31-1-2609-00, #31-1-2607-00, and #31-1-1962-00) into one new parcel 

as shown on the attached map and subject to the conditions in the attached 

staff report

StaffReport_1608EWisconsinAv_CrossingPlatBoundary_For07-13-22.pdfAttachments:

6. Information Items

7. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 7/8/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21419
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6aa4ca96-2fe5-4497-9d85-6c51672de3e0.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

City Plan Commission

Any questions about items on this meeting are to be directed 

to the Community and Economic Development Department, 

920-832-6468.

3:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorWednesday, June 8, 2022

Call meeting to order1.

Meeting called to order by Chair Mayor Woodford at 3:31 p.m.

Roll call of membership2.

Commissioner Fenton appeared virtually and participated via Zoom.

Palm, Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow and UitenbroekPresent: 6 - 

DaneExcused: 1 - 

Others present:

Tracey Erickson, Peak Inc.

Brian Jensen, Peak Inc.

Approval of minutes from previous meeting3.

22-0747 City Plan Minutes from 5-11-22

City Plan Minutes 5-11-22.pdfAttachments:

Uitenbroek moved, seconded by Robins, that the Minutes be approved. Roll 

Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Palm, Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow and Uitenbroek6 - 

Excused: Dane1 - 

Public Hearings/Appearances4.

Page 1City of Appleton



June 8, 2022City Plan Commission Meeting Minutes - Final

22-0748 Special Use Permit #6-22 for a car wash use located at 3200 E. Express 

Court (Tax Id #31-4-5568-00), as shown on the attached materials and 

per attached plan of operation, to run with the land subject to the 

conditions in the attached staff report and approve attached Resolution 

(Associated with Action Item #22-0749)

ClassIIPublicHearingNoticeNewspaper_EExpressCt_SUP#6-22.pdf

PublicHearingNoticeNeighborhood_EExpressCt_SUP#6-22.pdf

Attachments:

This public hearing was held, and no one spoke on the item.

Action Items5.

22-0749 Request to approve Special Use Permit #6-22 for a car wash use 

located at 3200 E. Express Court (Tax Id #31-4-5568-00), as shown on 

the attached materials and per attached plan of operation, to run with the 

land subject to the conditions in the attached staff report and approve 

attached Resolution (2/3 vote of Common Council required for approval)

StaffReport_Peak Car Wash_SUP_For06-08-22.pdfAttachments:

Buetow moved, seconded by Robins, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Palm, Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow and Uitenbroek6 - 

Excused: Dane1 - 

Information Items6.

22-0750 Overlapping Extraterritorial Plat Approval Jurisdictions

StaffMemo_ETJOverlap_For06-08-22.pdf

ETJOverlap_Appleton-FoxCrossing-Greenville_BuffersOnly.pdf

ETJOverlap_Appleton-FoxCrossing-Greenville_EquidistantLines.pdf

ETJOverlap_Appleton-FoxCrossing-Greenville_Aerial+SectionLines_A

greedUponLine.pdf

Attachments:

This item was presented and discussed.

Adjournment7.

Palm moved, seconded by Robins, that the meeting be adjourned at 3:46 p.m. 

Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Palm, Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow and Uitenbroek6 - 

Excused: Dane1 - 

Page 2City of Appleton



              CEDD (15010) 

     Reprints - 2 

 

 
CITY OF APPLETON  

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

PROPOSED SPECIAL USE PERMIT 

 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a Public Hearing to be held before the City Plan Commission on 

Wednesday, July 13, 2022, at 3:30 P.M., in Council Chambers, 6th Floor, City Hall, 100 North Appleton 

Street, or as soon thereafter as can be heard, for the purpose of considering a Special Use Permit. 

 

Pursuant to Sections 23-66 and 23-113 of the Appleton Municipal Code, to consider a 

request by Midwestern Wheels Inc., owner/applicant, for property located at 1608 East 

Wisconsin Avenue (Tax Id #31-1-2605-00, #31-1-2609-00, #31-1-2607-00, and #31-1-1962-

00) to obtain a Special Use Permit to conform and expand an automobile sales and display 

lot.  In the C-2 General Commercial District, a Special Use Permit is required for an 

automobile sales and display lot. 

 

All persons interested are invited to attend this meeting and will be given an opportunity to be heard.  

Feedback can also be shared with Plan Commission members via written letter, email, or phone call.  Any 

questions regarding this matter should be directed to David Kress, Principal Planner, in the Community and 

Economic Development Department at (920) 832-6428 or by email at david.kress@appleton.org. 

 

 

CITY PLAN COMMISSION   COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  

APPLETON, WISCONSIN   CITY HALL - 100 NORTH APPLETON STREET 

APPLETON, WISCONSIN 54911-4799 

(920) 832-6468 

 

 

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and if feasible. 

 

 

RUN: June 28, 2022 

 July 5, 2022 

  

mailto:david.kress@appleton.org


 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  

 

OF THE 

 

APPLETON CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

 

 

Dear property owner(s): 

 

The City of Appleton Plan Commission will conduct a Public Hearing on Wednesday, July 13, 2022, at 

3:30 P.M., or as soon thereafter as can be heard, in Common Council Chambers, 6th Floor, City Hall, 100 

North Appleton Street, for the purpose of considering the following proposed Special Use Permit: 

 

 

• Pursuant to Sections 23-66 and 23-113 of the Appleton Municipal Code, to consider a 

request by Midwestern Wheels Inc., owner/applicant, for property located at 1608 East 

Wisconsin Avenue (Tax Id #31-1-2605-00, #31-1-2609-00, #31-1-2607-00, and #31-1-

1962-00) to obtain a Special Use Permit to conform and expand an automobile sales and 

display lot (Avis Car Sales).  In the C-2 General Commercial District, a Special Use 

Permit is required for an automobile sales and display lot. 

 

• ALDERMANIC DISTRICT:  2 – Alderperson Vered Meltzer 

 

 

You are being notified as a policy of the City of Appleton Community and Economic Development 

Department.  All persons interested are invited to attend this meeting and will be given an opportunity to 

be heard.  Feedback can also be shared with Plan Commission members via written letter, email, or phone 

call.  The Plan Commission makes a recommendation to the Common Council who makes the final 

decision on the matter. 

 

Any questions regarding this matter should be directed to David Kress, Principal Planner, in the 

Community and Economic Development Department at 920-832-6428 or by email at 

david.kress@appleton.org. 

 

 

CITY PLAN COMMISSION    COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  

       CITY HALL - 100 NORTH APPLETON STREET 

 APPLETON, WISCONSIN 54911-4799 

 920-832-6468 

 

 
Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and if feasible. 

mailto:david.kress@appleton.org


1-2610-1
1-2

12
8

1-21761-2
12

9

1-2131 1-3
98

7-3
9

1-3
98

7-3
8

1-2617

1-2616

1-2615

1-2221

1-2222

1-2624

1-2623

1-2622

1-3987-74

1-2612

1-2611

1-2
63

6

1-2
63

5
1-2

63
3

1-2
63

4

1-3
98

7-2
7

1-3
98

7-2
5

1-2130

1-2
12

7

1-2177

1-2178

1-2179

1-2132

1-2133

1-2180

1-2181

1-2134

1-2134-1

1-2136

1-2182

1-2182-1

1-2183-1

1-2183
1-2184

1-2216

1-2215
1-2

61
9

1-2
62

0

1-2218

1-2217

1-2217-1

1-2219

1-2219-1

1-2618

1-2223

1-2223-1

1-2224

1-2614

1-2613

1-2632

1-2631

1-2630

1-2629

1-3987-61

1-3987-60

1-3987-59

1-3987-581-2628

1-2626

1-2625

1-3987-57

1-3987-75

1-3987-76

1-3
98

7-8
0

1-3
98

7-8
1

1-3
98

7-8
2

1-3
98

7-7
9

1-3
98

7-7
8

1-3
98

7-7
7

1-3
98

7-3
6

1-3
98

7-3
7

1-1
94

6-1

1-1
94

7-1

1-1
94

6

1-1
94

7

1-1
94

8

1-1
95

1

1-1954

1-1955

1-1
95

6

1-1
95

2
1-1

95
0

1-1
94

9

1-1
95

9

1-1962

1-2
60

7

1-2
60

9

1-1957

1-1958 1-1
96

0

1-2
60

4

1-1
96

1 1-2605

1-1043

1-1
04

5-5

1-1
04

5

1-1216 1-1217 1-1218

1-1
21

9-1

1-1
21

9-2

1-1219

1-1220

1-2
17

5

1-2627

13
19 13

19
13

11 13
14

13
20

14
05

14
09

14
15

14
19

14
25

14
31

15
06

15
01

15
07

15
13

14
02

14
04

14
10

14
16

14
13

14
19

14
2314

20

14
31

15
01

15
05

15
13

14
24

14
30

15
04

15
10

14
02

14
08

14
12

14
16 14

19
-2114

24
14

30
15

00

14
23

-25

15
08

15
12

15

12
-16

14
00

14
20

1419

14
03

14
09

-11
14

15
-17

1431 1437

1524

15
19

15
23

15
19

15
16 15

18

1718

1719

15
24

15
25

15
22

15
28

1718-20

1531 1539 1601 1611

17
-19

3-5

6-1
0

9-1
1

14201414

1713

17181714

1709

1708170016241608

1628161016001536

1514150815021430-321422

14
03

14
15

14
19

15
07

15
01

14
25

14
31

1434143014261422

14
06

14
20

14
26

14
32

14
38

15
00

E AMELIA ST

E WISCONSIN AV

N 
WA

YN
E S

T

N 
UL

LM
AN

 ST

R-1B

R-1B

C-2

P-I

R-2

R-2

R-3

R-1B

R-3
HY 96

E WISCONSIN AV

E GLENDALE AV

N 
OW

AIS
SA

 ST

N 
BA

LL
AR

D 
RD

E PACIFIC ST

E GLENDALE AV 1608 East Wisconsin Avenue
Special Use Permit

Automobile Sales and Display Lot
Zoning Map

Subject Area

Subject
Area

City Plan Commission
7-13-22

N 
CH

AR
LO

TT
E S

T

SIL
VE

RC
RE

ST
 D

R

FERBER ALLEY

WO
OD

ME
RE

 C
T

SILVERCREST DR

± 0 100 20050 Feet



1-2216

1-2215

1-2
61

9

1-2
62

0

1-2217
1-1

95
9

1-1962
1-2

60
7

1-2
60

9

1-1957

1-1958 1-1
96

0

1-2
60

4

1-1
96

1 1-2605

1-1218

14
02

14
08

1524

1531 1539 1601 1611

1608

161016001536

N 
WA

YN
E S

T

E AMELIA ST

E WISCONSIN AV

1608 East Wisconsin Avenue
Special Use Permit

Automobile Sales and Display Lot
Aerial Map

City Plan Commission
7-13-22± 0 100 20050 Feet

Subject Area



EV EV EV EVEV

E
E

E

E
E

E

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

S
T

O

S
T

O

S

T

O

S

T

O

S

T

O

>

 

o

 

o

 

o

> o o o

> o o o

> o o o

> o o o

> o o o

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

IP

NAIL

IP
IP

IP
IP

IP IP

X
X

X

X

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

STO

STO

STO

STO

T

T

T

T

X

ST

ST

WV

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
T

O

S
T

O
S

T
O

S
T

O
S

T
O

S
T

O

S
T

O
S

T
O

S
T

O
S

T
O

S
T

O

S
T

O
S

T
O

S
T

O
S

T
O

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

S

S
T

O

STO

STO

S

T

O

S

T

O

S
T

O

W W

G
G

WV

ST

WV

WV

NAIL

IP
IP

IP
IP

ST

O

H

W

O

H

W

O

H

W

O

H

W

O

H

W

O

H

W

O

H

W

ST

O
H

W
O

H
W

O
H

W
O

H
W

O
H

W
O

H
W

O
H

W
O

H
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

ASPHALT

ASPHALT

LARGE SIGN

AVIS CAR RENTAL

BUILDING

ASPHALT

GRAVEL

6
0
'
 
P

U
B

L
I
C

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

N
 
W

A
Y

N
E

 
S

T

50' PUBLIC STREET

E AMELIA ST

66' PUBLIC STREET

E WISCONSIN ST

RIM: 751.74

10" STEEL E: 747.14

RIM: 753.15

6" PVC : 751.35

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

CO
N

CR
ET

E 
SI

DE
W

AL
K

G
RA

SS

X

X

X

X

X

X

10" STEEL

6

"

 

P

V

C

RIM: 752.99

10" PVC: 748.66

WOOD FENCE

CHAIN LINK
FENCE

CHAIN LINK
FENCE

G
RA

SS

OVERHEAD
DOOR

ASPHALT

AS
P 

DR
IV

E

37' DRIVE
39' DRIVE

AS
PH

AL
T

SHED

S

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

FFE = 752.51

FFE = 752.47

37' DRIVE 24' DRIVE
RIM: 753.14

18" CON N: 744.04

30" CON W:743.29

RIM: 755.39

30" CON E: 745.24

RIM: 750.34

12" CON W: 742.04

18" CON S: 741.89

CO
N

C 
DR

IV
E

CONCRETE

GRASS

LANDSCAPE
AREA

G
RA

SS

GRASSGRASS

CO
N

CR
ET

E 
SI

DE
W

AL
K

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

CONCRETE SIDEWALK & TERRACE

STO
STO

STO
STO STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO STO STO
STO

CONCRETE SIDEWALK & TERRACE

X

GARAGE
GARAGE

CONCRETE

TERRACE

BUILDING AND

OVERHANG

ENCROACHES

8' 8' 9' 9'

20'

27.13'

37.09'
EXISTING

 DRIVEWAY
24'

EXISTING
 DRIVEWAY

39.11'
EXISTING

 DRIVEWAY

22'

9'
TYP

8'

8'

REPLACE CHAIN LINK FENCE
WITH 6 -FT HIGH WOODEN

SCREENING FENCE

3 SPACES

2 SPACES

10
 S

PA
CE

S

19'
TYP

10.99'

10.93'

EXISTING 6 -FT HIGH WOODEN
SCREENING FENCE

 PROPOSED 6 -FT HIGH WOODEN
SCREENING FENCE

PULL BOXES (4) AND
3" PVC CONDUIT (125')

FOR ELECTRICAL SERVICE
TO EV CHARGING STATIONS

PULL BOXES AND
3" PVC CONDUIT (73.5')

FOR ELECTRICAL SERVICE
TO EV CHARGING STATIONS

5-DUAL EV
CHARGING STATIONS (TYP)

EXISTING POWER POLE AND
GUY WIRE OVER EXISTING FENCE

10'

1.32'

45'

9'
TYP 18.5'

20.5'

9'
TYP23.67'

30'

18'
TYP

35.6'

12.31'

11.68'

CAR SALES DISPLAY AREA
AND SEASONAL TRUCK RENTAL

PARKING AREA

R4
.5

'

R4.5'

R3'
R10' R6'

R1
.5'

R4.5'

R3.5'

R5'

8'

5'

5'

1'

13.5'
11'

11'

10.83'

EX
IS

TI
N

G
DR

IV
EW

AY

33.18'

HC PARKING SIGN
W/VAN PLATE
MOUNTED ON POLE
OR BUILDING WALL

SWALE

EXTEND 6 -FT HIGH
WOODEN
SCREENING FENCE

4.85'

6.71'

4.89'

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X

XXX

X
X

X
X

XXX

X
X

X
X

X

REPLACE CONCRETE WALK PER
CITY OF APPLETON STANDARDS

STANDARD VERTICAL FACE
CURB & GUTTER 24-INCH

STANDARD VERTICAL FACE
CURB & GUTTER 24-INCH

REJECT VERTICAL FACE
CURB & GUTTER 24-INCH

REJECT VERTICAL FACE
CURB & GUTTER 24-INCH

20'

UNDERDRAIN 10-FT OUT
FROM INLETS AND MANHOLES (TYP)

REMOVE DRIVEWAY APRON
SAWCUT AND REPLACE WITH
STANDARD VERTICAL FACE
CURB & GUTTER 24-INCH
PER CITY STANDARDS

LIGHT POLE
(TYP)

LIGHT POLE
(TYP)

SNOW STORAGE AREA

FULL DEPTH SAWCUT OF CONCRETE PAVEMENT REQUIRED.
8-INCH CONCRETE PAVEMENT WITH INTEGRAL CURB AND
DOWELED PER CITY STANDARD DETAIL. AGGREGATE SLURRY
BACKFILL TO 2-FEET BEHIND CURB.

Checked:

Drawn:

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
 D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

COPYRIGHT NOTICE
THESE DRAWINGS AS INSTRUMENTS OF
SERVICE REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF PAYNE
& DOLAN, INC. ANY CHANGES,
PUBLICATION, OR UNAUTHORIZED USE IS
PROHIBITED UNLESS EXPRESSLY
AUTHORIZED BY PAYNE & DOLAN, INC.

Drawing Scale:

P&D Project No:

N
O

SH
EE

T 
TI

TL
E

PR
O

JE
CT

CL
IE

N
T

Sheet No.

Seal

w
w

w
.
w

a
l
b
e
c
g
r
o
u
p
.
c
o
m

(
9
2
0
)
 
7
5
7
-
7
5
5
9

A
 
W

A
L

B
E

C
 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

M
I
D

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
W

H
E

E
L

S
 
I
N

C
.
 

L
O

T
 
R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

C1

SCALE IN FEET

20' 40'0

PROPOSED LEGEND

4" ASPHALT PAVEMENT

HANDICAP PARKING

SIGN

THE LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITY INSTALLATIONS AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN
ARE APPROXIMATE. THERE MAY BE OTHER UNDERGROUND UTILITY
INSTALLATIONS WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA THAT ARE NOT SHOWN.
CONTRACTORS SHALL MAKE THEIR OWN DETERMINATION AND VERIFY THE THE
LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

THE CLIENT AND OR OTHER RECIPIENTS AGREE TO THE FULLEST EXTENT
PERMITTED BY LAW TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD PAYNE AND DOLAN HARMLESS
FOR ANY REUSE OF OR FROM CHANGES MADE TO THE ORIGINAL DRAWING OR
DATA WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT BY PAYNE AND DOLAN.

PROPOSED LIGHT POLES

Toll Free (800) 242-8511

Milwaukee Area (414) 259-1181

Hearing Impaired TDD (800) 542-2289

www.DiggersHotline.com

STO STO

EXISTING GAS LINE
EXISTING ELECTRIC UNDERGROUND
EXISTING TELEPHONE UNDERGROUND
EXISTING FIBER OPTIC UNDERGROUND
EXISTING WATER LINE

EXISTING STORM SEWER LINE
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

PROPERTY LINE
RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING FENCE

G G

E E

T T

FO FO

W W W

X X

S S

EXISTING BUILDING

MAJOR CONTOUR
MINOR CONTOUR
LANDSCAPE EDGING

LINETYPE LEGEND

EV

6' HIGH WOODEN SCREENING FENCE

PROPOSED ELECTRICAL PULL BOX

PROPOSED EV CHARGING STATION

> o o o

STO

MANHOLE

INLET

SITE DATA

ZONING - C-2 GENERAL COMMERCIAL

PARCEL:
 31-1-1962-00, 31-1-2607-00, 31-1-2605-00, 31-1-2609-00

LOT AREA = 46,331 SF, 1.064 ACRES
EXISTING IMPERVIOUS AREA  = 44,034 SF, 1.011 ACRES, 95.04%
PROPOSED  IMPERVIOUS AREA = 38,726 SF, 0.889 ACRES, 83.59%
EXISTING GREENSPACE = 2,297 SF, 1.288 AC, 4.96%
PROPOSED GREENSPACE = 7,605 SF, 0.175 AC, 16.41%

DISTURBED AREA = 42,062 SF, 0.965 AC

EXISTING PARKING SPACES NO SPACES MARKED
PROPOSED PARKING SPACES 5 SPACES (1 HC SPACES, WITH VAN PLATE)

BICYCLE PARKING WILL BE INSIDE THE GARAGE.

PROPERTY OWNER:
BILL WALLSCHLAEGER/JEREMIAH SCHWERSENSKA
MIDWESTERN WHEELS
2350 N CASALOMA DRIVE, SUITE 202
APPLETON, WI 54912
PHONE: 920-931-6200 / 920-931-0623
JEREMIAH.SCHWERSENSKA@MIDWESTERNWHEELS.COM

PLAN PREPARER: PAYNE & DOLAN
STEVE KOLAR
W6380 DESIGN DRIVE
GREENVILLE, WI 54942
920-757-7561
SKOLAR@WALBECGROUP.COM

PROP. STORM
 SEW

ER

PROP. STORM SEWER PROP. STORM SEWER

ST

IP

IR

DOWN SPOUT

INLET, CURB

ELECTRIC PEDESTAL
FIBER OPTIC MARKER
FIRE HYDRANT
FLOOD LIGHT

CLEANOUT
SIGN COLUMN
CATV PEDESTAL
BUSH
BOLLARD/LIGHTED

LIGHT POLE
FOUND IRON ROD

MAILBOX

PINE

INLET, ROUND

HOSE BIB

HANDICAP PARKING

GAS VALVE

SOIL BORING

FOUND IRON PIPE

STORM MANHOLE
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

SIGN

SANITARY MANHOLE

TREE
UTILITY POLE
WATER VALVE

TOPO SYMBOLS

WV

GUY WIRES

SNOW STORAGE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89%%D22'25"E   90.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00%%D19'30"W  89.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89%%D24'10"W   164.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00%%D28'21"E 149.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89%%D25'37"W    255.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00%%D13'55"E   240.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEVEN KOLAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENVILLE,

AutoCAD SHX Text
E-35047

AutoCAD SHX Text
2350 N CASALOMA DRIVE, SUITE 200 APPLETON, WI 54912

AutoCAD SHX Text
1608 E WISCONSIN AVENUE APPLETON, WI 

AutoCAD SHX Text
04/27/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
490576

AutoCAD SHX Text
748

AutoCAD SHX Text
750

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD VERTICAL FACE CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

kressdm
Text Box
RECEIVED
JUN  7  2022
CITY OF APPLETON
COMM/ECON DEV



EV EV EV EVEV

STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO

STO
STO

ST
O

ST
O

ST
O

> o o o > o o o > o o o

> o o o> o o o> o o o

X
X

X

X

TTTTTTTTTTT

STOSTOSTOSTO

T
T T T

ST

ST

WV

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

STO
STO

STO
STO

STO
STO

STO
STO

STO
STO

STO
STO

STO
STO

STO

STOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTO

S

STO

STO STO

STO

STO

ST
O

W W

GG

WV

ST

WV

WV

NAIL

IP
IP

OHW

OHW

OHW

OHW

OHW

OHW

OHW

ST

O
H

W
O

H
W

O
H

W
O

H
W

O
H

W
O

H
W

O
H

W
O

H
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

WWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWW

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

G

FO FO FO FO FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO

AVIS CAR RENTAL

BUILDING

60
' P

U
BL

IC
 S

TR
EE

T
N

 W
AY

N
E 

ST

50' PUBLIC STREET
E AMELIA ST

66' PUBLIC STREET
E WISCONSIN ST

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

X
X

WOOD FENCE

CHAIN LINK
FENCE

CHAIN LINK
FENCE

OVERHEAD
DOOR

ASPHALT

SHED

S

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

GRASS

GRASSGRASS
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO

X GARAGE
GARAGE

CONCRETE

TERRACE

BUILDING AND
OVERHANG
ENCROACHES

ASPHALT

AS
PH

AL
T

ASPHALT

GAR

5/23/2022

1"=20'-0"

L100

20' 40'0

Horizontal Scale In Feet
LANDSCAPE PLAN

GAR

SHEET:

SCALE:

REVISED:

DATE:

DESIGN BY:

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECTURE

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T 
FO

R

treesonthemove.com

Phone: (262) 679-5200

5611 S. Calhoun Road
New Berlin, WI 53151

THIS DRAWING IS MADE SOLELY FOR THE INDIVIDUAL NAMES HEREIN AND IS PROPERTY OF TREES ON THE MOVE, INC. ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE OR DUPLICATOIN IS IN VIOLATION OF THE COPYRIGHT LAWS AND SUBJECT TO PROSECUTION

PLANTINGS, STRUCTURES AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONVEYING LANDSCAPE DESIGN FEATURES. REFER TO PREPARED CONTRACT DOCUMENTS FOR SPECIFIC ITEMS INCLUDED IN ANY PARTICULAR PHASE OF LANDSCAPE CONSTRUCTION.
RText (RText)

WISCONSIN'S LARGEST
TREE TRANSPLANTERS

M
ID

W
ES

TE
RN

 W
HE

EL
S-

LO
T 

RE
CO

NS
TR

UC
TI

ON

AP
PL

ET
ON

, W
IS

CO
NS

IN

DRAWN BY:

16
08

 E
AS

T 
W

IS
CO

NS
IN

 A
VE

.

Toll Free (800) 242-8511
Milwaukee Area (414) 259-1181

Hearing Impaired TDD (800) 542-2289
www.DiggersHotline.com

ex. evergreen
shrubs

sign

SEA GREEN
JUNIPER

ROYAL RED
MAPLE

STATE STREET
MAPLE

AY
5

MW
2

MW
1

CK
18

CK
18

JG
12

JG
12

SB
6

PD
3

PD
3

JG
12

SB
3

SB
3

ex. concrete
sidewalk & terrace

SNOW STORAGE

SB
3

TURF

TURF

TURF

ex. concrete
sidewalk & turf
terrace

AR
4

CK
6

ALUM. EDGE AT
BED/TURF (typ)

ANTHONY
WATERER SPIREA

SPRING SNOW
CRABAPPLE

KARL
FOERSTER
REED GRASS

LITTLE DEVIL
NINEBARK

light pole (typ)

TURF

TURF

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
GERARD A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REWOLINSKI

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLENDALE,

AutoCAD SHX Text
WI



 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner/Applicant:  Midwestern Wheels, Inc.  c/o Bill Wallschaeger and Jeremiah Schwersenska 

 

Address/Parcel #:  1608 East Wisconsin Avenue (Tax Id #31-1-2605-00, #31-1-2609-00, #31-1-2607-

00, and #31-1-1962-00) 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit to conform and expand an 

existing automobile sales and display lot. 

 

BACKGROUND______________________________________________________________  _ 

The applicant already occupies parcels #31-1-2605-00 and #31-1-2609-00 on the subject site.  According 

to the applicant, Midwestern Wheels, Inc. (doing business as Avis Car Sales & Rentals and Budget Car & 

Truck Rentals) has operated at this location for 45 years with automobile rental and sales.  The existing 

operation predates the Special Use Permit requirement.  In 2013, the applicant purchased parcels #31-1-

2607-00 and #31-1-1962-00, which were previously used as a tavern.  The tavern building was 

demolished in 2013.  Before expanding the automobile sales and display lot onto parcels #31-1-2607-00 

and #31-1-1962-00, the applicant must receive approval of a Special Use Permit. 

 

A Certified Survey Map (CSM) was submitted in conjunction with the Special Use Permit request.  The 

CSM would combine the subject parcels (#31-1-2605-00, #31-1-2609-00, #31-1-2607-00, and #31-1-

1962-00) into one parcel.  CSMs are typically administratively reviewed and approved by City staff, but 

because it crosses a plat boundary, the CSM must be approved by Plan Commission and Common 

Council.  CSM #21-22 is also being presented at this July 13, 2022 Plan Commission meeting. 

 

Site Plan #19-22 for the proposed expansion and reconstruction of an automobile sales and display lot on 

the subject area was submitted for review.  Approval of the Special Use Permit and CSM is needed prior 

to Site Plan approval. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Project Summary:  The applicant proposes to conform and expand an existing automobile sales and 

display lot on the subject site.  As shown on the attached development plan, the applicant proposes to 

expand and reconstruct the paved area to be utilized for automobile and truck rental, automobile sales and 

display, and customer/employee parking.  Based on the information supplied through Site Plan #19-22, 

the total paved area would be approximately 35,956 square feet in size.  The existing building, which is 

approximately 2,770 square feet in size, would continue to provide office space and an area to clean the  

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Public Hearing Date:  July 13, 2022 

 

Common Council Meeting Date:  July 20, 2022 

 

Item:  Special Use Permit #7-22 to conform and expand an automobile 

sales and display lot 

 

Case Manager:  David Kress, Principal Planner 

Community  

and Economic 

Development 



Special Use Permit #7-22 

July 13, 2022 

Page 2 

 

interior and exterior of vehicles (rental and for sale vehicles only).  As part of the project, the applicant 

also proposes to extend a wooden fence along the north and west ends of the site, add perimeter 

landscaping along Wisconsin Avenue and Wayne Street, and reduce the number of curb cuts. 

 

Operational Information:  A plan of operation is attached to the staff report. 

 

Existing Site Conditions:  The 1.06-acre site is currently developed with an existing single-story 

building, which is approximately 2,770 square feet in size.  The site also includes an existing automobile 

rental, sales, and display lot, as well as a paved/gravel area previously used for a tavern.  Access is 

provided by curb cuts on East Wisconsin Avenue and North Wayne Street. 

 

Current Zoning and Procedural Findings:  The subject property has a zoning designation of C-2 

General Commercial District.  An automobile rental lot is a permitted use in the C-2 District.  Per Section 

23-113(e) of the Municipal Code, an automobile sales and display lot requires a Special Use Permit in the 

C-2 District.  The Plan Commission makes a recommendation to the Common Council who will make the 

final decision on the Special Use Permit.  A two-thirds vote of the Common Council is required for 

approval. 

 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses:  The surrounding area is under the jurisdiction of the City of 

Appleton (north, south, east, and west).  The uses are generally commercial and residential in nature. 

 

North:  R-1B Single-Family District.  The adjacent land uses to the north are currently single-family 

residential. 

 

South:  R-1B Single-Family District.  The adjacent land to the south is currently vacant and owned by 

Appleton Cemetery Association. 

 

East:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land uses to the east are currently a mix of 

commercial uses. 

 

West:  C-2 General Commercial District and R-1B Single-Family District.  The adjacent land uses to the 

west are currently a mix of commercial and single-family residential uses. 

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  Community and Economic Development staff has reviewed 

this proposal and determined it is compatible with the Commercial designation shown on the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map.  Listed below are related excerpts from the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

Goal 8 – Economic Development 

Appleton will pursue economic development that retains and attracts talented people, brings good jobs to 

the area, and supports the vitality of its industrial areas, downtown, and neighborhood business districts. 



Special Use Permit #7-22 

July 13, 2022 

Page 3 

 

OBJECTIVE 9.4 Economic Development: 

Ensure the continued vitality of downtown and the City’s neighborhood commercial districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.5 Land Use: 

Support the continued redevelopment and revitalization of land uses adjacent to Appleton’s key 

transportation corridors and downtown. 

 

Chapter 15: Wisconsin Avenue Corridor Plan, General Plan: 

Encourage private renovation and redevelopment that addresses existing limitations of platting and land 

assembly, site planning issues such as parking and access, and aesthetics. 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the June 21, 2022 TRG agenda.  No 

negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

Zoning Ordinance Requirements and Substantial Evidence:  When reviewing an application for a 

Special Use Permit, the City must determine if the applicant’s proposal satisfies Municipal Code 

requirements and conditions.  Pursuant to Section 23-66(c)(5) of the Municipal Code, the Plan 

Commission and Common Council must provide substantial evidence supporting their decision to 

approve, approve with conditions, or deny the Special Use Permit.  Substantial evidence means “facts and 

information, other than merely personal preferences or speculation, directly pertaining to the requirements 

and conditions an applicant must meet to obtain a Special Use Permit and that reasonable persons would 

accept in support of a conclusion.”  Any requirements and conditions listed for approval must be 

reasonable, and to the extent practicable, measurable. 

 

As part of the special regulations for an automobile sales and display lot, perimeter landscaping is 

required pursuant to Section 23-66(h)(5) of the Municipal Code.  For the subject site, a minimum 5-foot 

wide landscape buffer is required in the front yards and the side yard abutting a commercially zoned 

district.  A minimum 10-foot wide landscape buffer is required in the side and rear yards abutting a 

residentially zoned district, but this may be reduced by providing a 6-foot high board-on-board fence.  

Based on the attached development plan drawings, these dimensional requirements would be satisfied 

around the entire perimeter, except along neighboring parcel #31-1-2604-00.  The reduced landscape 

buffer is an existing condition in this location, and the applicant proposes to install a 6-foot high wooden 

fence along this parcel.  The planting materials shown on the development plan appear to comply with the 

requirements of Section 23-66(h)(5) of the Municipal Code; however, planting in the north landscape 

buffer is difficult due to the drainage swale, existing utilities, and fence. 

 

Section 23-172(m) of the Municipal Code requires a minimum number of off-street parking spaces based 

on the use of a property.  Based on the information supplied through Site Plan #19-22, a total of 15 

parking spaces are required for the automobile rental, sales, and display lot use.  There are 15 parking 

spaces identified on the development plan drawings.  Final parking calculations and the location of 

customer/employee parking will be handled through the Site Plan review process.  Site Plan #19-22 must 

be approved prior to the issuance of a paving permit by the Inspections Division. 

 

Finding of Fact:  This request was reviewed in accordance with the standards (proper zoning district, 

district regulations, special regulations, comprehensive plan and other plans, traffic, landscaping and 

screening, neighborhood compatibility, and impact on services) for granting a Special Use Permit under  



Special Use Permit #7-22 

July 13, 2022 

Page 4 

 

Section 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code, which were found in the affirmative, as long as all 

stipulations are satisfied. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Staff recommends, based on the above analysis, that Special Use Permit #7-22 to conform and expand an 

automobile sales and display lot located at 1608 East Wisconsin Avenue (Tax Id #31-1-2605-00, #31-1-

2609-00, #31-1-2607-00, and #31-1-1962-00), as shown on the attached maps and per attached plan of 

operation, along with the attached resolution, BE APPROVED to run with the land, subject to the 

following conditions: 

 

1. All applicable codes, ordinances, and regulations, including but not limited to Fire, Building, and 

Health Codes and the Noise Ordinance, shall be complied with. 

Substantial Evidence:  Standardized condition to ensure the applicant understands the City’s 

Municipal Code and all applicable State and Federal laws must be followed. 

 

2. The automobile sales and display lot use is limited to the proposed pavement area shown on the 

attached development plan drawings.  Vehicles displayed for sale outdoors shall be kept within the 

broader pavement area, while maintaining adequate traffic circulation and the minimum off-street 

parking spaces required for customers/employees.  Any future expansions or deviations from the 

approved development plan may require a major or minor amendment request to this Special Use 

Permit, pursuant to Section 23-66(g) of the Municipal Code. 

Substantial Evidence:  Standardized condition that establishes parameters for the current 

application and identifies the process for review of any future changes to the special use. 

 

3. This Special Use Permit is needed for the automobile sales and display lot use.  Compliance with 

the plan of operation is required at all times.  Changes to the plan of operation, including any 

future changes to the agent/operator, shall be submitted to the Community and Economic 

Development Department for review and approval. 

Substantial Evidence:  Standardized condition that establishes parameters for the current 

application and identifies the process for review of any future changes to the special use. 

 

4. The minimum standards for an automobile sales and display lot found in Section 23-66(h)(5) of 

the Municipal Code shall be complied with, as applicable. 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition provides notice to the applicant that they are required to 

comply with special regulations included in the Zoning Ordinance for this particular use.  

 

5. Prior to displaying vehicles for sale in the expansion area, the operator shall provide the 

Inspections Supervisor with a valid copy of their State of Wisconsin Motor Vehicle Dealer 

License, if required. 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition provides notice to the applicant that a new or amended 

State license may also be needed prior to operating. 

 

6. Prior to expanding the automobile sales and display lot on what are currently parcels #31-1-2607-

00 and #31-1-1962-00, all four subject parcels shall be combined via Certified Survey Map. 



Special Use Permit #7-22 

July 13, 2022 

Page 5 

 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition provides notice to the applicant that a lot combination is 

needed when expanding a structure across lot lines.  The CSM would eliminate interior lot 

lines.  In order to satisfy the requirements of Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin State Statutes, the 

CSM needs to be approved in the same manner as a Final Plat, which includes Plan 

Commission and Common Council approval. 

 

7. Site Plan review and approval is required, pursuant to Section 23-570 of the Municipal Code, prior 

to the issuance of a paving permit by the Inspections Division.  Zoning Ordinance requirements, 

including the minimum off-street parking spaces required, and other departmental comments will 

be examined further during review of Site Plan #19-22. 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition provides notice to the applicant that Site Plan review is 

required for an expansion of the structure, as specified in the Zoning Ordinance. 



1 | P a g e  

 

CITY OF APPLETON 

RESOLUTION FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT #7-22    

AUTOMOBILE SALES AND DISPLAY LOT 

1608 EAST WISCONSIN AVENUE 
 

 

WHEREAS, Midwestern Wheels, Inc. has applied for a Special Use Permit to conform and expand an 

automobile sales and display lot located at 1608 East Wisconsin Avenue, also identified as Parcel Numbers 31-

1-2605-00, 31-1-2609-00, 31-1-2607-00, and 31-1-1962-00; and 
 

WHEREAS, the location for the proposed automobile sales and display lot is located in the C-2 General 

Commercial District, and the proposed use may be permitted by Special Use Permit within this zoning district 

pursuant to Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission held a public hearing on July 13, 2022 on Special Use 

Permit #7-22, at which all those wishing to be heard were allowed to speak or present written comments and 

other materials at the public hearing; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission has reviewed and considered the Community and 

Economic Development Department’s staff report and recommendation, as well as other spoken and written 

evidence and testimony presented at the public hearing; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the standards for granting a Special Use Permit 

under Sections 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the standards for imposing conditions on the 

Special Use Permit under Section 23-66(c)(5) of the Municipal Code, and forwarded Special Use Permit #7-22 

to the City of Appleton Common Council with a   favorable conditional      or       not favorable      (CIRCLE 

ONE) recommendation; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Common Council has reviewed the report and recommendation of the City 

of Appleton Plan Commission at their meeting on July 20, 2022. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the Common Council, 

based on Community and Economic Development Department’s staff report and recommendation, as well as 

other spoken and written evidence and testimony presented at the public hearing and Common Council meeting, 

and having considered the recommendation of the City Plan Commission, that the Common Council: 
 

1. Determines all standards listed under Sections 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code are found in the 

affirmative     YES     or     NO      (CIRCLE ONE) 
 

2. If NO, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby denies Special Use Permit #7-22 to conform and 

expand an automobile sales and display lot located at 1608 East Wisconsin Avenue, also identified as Parcel 

Numbers 31-1-2605-00, 31-1-2609-00, 31-1-2607-00, and 31-1-1962-00, based upon the following 

standards and determinations:  (List reason(s) why the Special Use Permit was denied) 
 

3. If YES, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby approves Special Use Permit #7-22 to conform and 

expand an automobile sales and display lot located at 1608 East Wisconsin Avenue, also identified as Parcel 

Numbers 31-1-2605-00, 31-1-2609-00, 31-1-2607-00, and 31-1-1962-00, subject to the following conditions 



2 | P a g e  

 

as they are related to the purpose of the City of Appleton Municipal Code and based on substantial 

evidence: 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT #7-22 
 

A. All applicable codes, ordinances, and regulations, including but not limited to Fire, Building, and Health 

Codes and the Noise Ordinance, shall be complied with. 
 

B. The automobile sales and display lot use is limited to the proposed pavement area shown on the attached 

development plan drawings.  Vehicles displayed for sale outdoors shall be kept within the broader 

pavement area, while maintaining adequate traffic circulation and the minimum off-street parking spaces 

required for customers/employees.  Any future expansions or deviations from the approved development 

plan may require a major or minor amendment request to this Special Use Permit, pursuant to Section 

23-66(g) of the Municipal Code. 
 

C. This Special Use Permit is needed for the automobile sales and display lot use.  Compliance with the 

plan of operation is required at all times.  Changes to the plan of operation, including any future changes 

to the agent/operator, shall be submitted to the Community and Economic Development Department for 

review and approval. 
 

D. The minimum standards for an automobile sales and display lot found in Section 23-66(h)(5) of the 

Municipal Code shall be complied with, as applicable. 
 

E. Prior to displaying vehicles for sale in the expansion area, the operator shall provide the Inspections 

Supervisor with a valid copy of their State of Wisconsin Motor Vehicle Dealer License, if required. 
 

F. Prior to expanding the automobile sales and display lot on what are currently parcels #31-1-2607-00 and 

#31-1-1962-00, all four subject parcels shall be combined via Certified Survey Map. 
 

G. Site Plan review and approval is required, pursuant to Section 23-570 of the Municipal Code, prior to 

the issuance of a paving permit by the Inspections Division.  Zoning Ordinance requirements, including 

the minimum off-street parking spaces required, and other departmental comments will be examined 

further during review of Site Plan #19-22. 
 

4. The City Clerk’s Office is hereby directed to give a copy of this resolution to the owner/applicant, 

Community and Economic Development Department, Inspections Division, and any other interested party. 
 

 

Adopted this ______ day of ____________________________, 2022. 
 

 

 

        _____________________________________ 

        Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 

_____________________________________ 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk 



1-2610-1
1-2

12
8

1-21761-2
12

9

1-2131 1-3
98

7-3
9

1-3
98

7-3
8

1-2617

1-2616

1-2615

1-2221

1-2222

1-2624

1-2623

1-2622

1-3987-74

1-2612

1-2611

1-2
63

6

1-2
63

5
1-2

63
3

1-2
63

4

1-3
98

7-2
7

1-3
98

7-2
5

1-2130

1-2
12

7

1-2177

1-2178

1-2179

1-2132

1-2133

1-2180

1-2181

1-2134

1-2134-1

1-2136

1-2182

1-2182-1

1-2183-1

1-2183
1-2184

1-2216

1-2215
1-2

61
9

1-2
62

0

1-2218

1-2217

1-2217-1

1-2219

1-2219-1

1-2618

1-2223

1-2223-1

1-2224

1-2614

1-2613

1-2632

1-2631

1-2630

1-2629

1-3987-61

1-3987-60

1-3987-59

1-3987-581-2628

1-2626

1-2625

1-3987-57

1-3987-75

1-3987-76

1-3
98

7-8
0

1-3
98

7-8
1

1-3
98

7-8
2

1-3
98

7-7
9

1-3
98

7-7
8

1-3
98

7-7
7

1-3
98

7-3
6

1-3
98

7-3
7

1-1
94

6-1

1-1
94

7-1

1-1
94

6

1-1
94

7

1-1
94

8

1-1
95

1

1-1954

1-1955

1-1
95

6

1-1
95

2
1-1

95
0

1-1
94

9

1-1
95

9

1-1962

1-2
60

7

1-2
60

9

1-1957

1-1958 1-1
96

0

1-2
60

4

1-1
96

1 1-2605

1-1043

1-1
04

5-5

1-1
04

5

1-1216 1-1217 1-1218

1-1
21

9-1

1-1
21

9-2

1-1219

1-1220

1-2
17

5

1-2627

13
19 13

19
13

11 13
14

13
20

14
05

14
09

14
15

14
19

14
25

14
31

15
06

15
01

15
07

15
13

14
02

14
04

14
10

14
16

14
13

14
19

14
2314

20

14
31

15
01

15
05

15
13

14
24

14
30

15
04

15
10

14
02

14
08

14
12

14
16 14

19
-2114

24
14

30
15

00

14
23

-25

15
08

15
12

15

12
-16

14
00

14
20

1419

14
03

14
09

-11
14

15
-17

1431 1437

1524

15
19

15
23

15
19

15
16 15

18

1718

1719

15
24

15
25

15
22

15
28

1718-20

1531 1539 1601 1611

17
-19

3-5

6-1
0

9-1
1

14201414

1713

17181714

1709

1708170016241608

1628161016001536

1514150815021430-321422

14
03

14
15

14
19

15
07

15
01

14
25

14
31

1434143014261422

14
06

14
20

14
26

14
32

14
38

15
00

E AMELIA ST

E WISCONSIN AV

N 
WA

YN
E S

T

N 
UL

LM
AN

 ST

R-1B

R-1B

C-2

P-I

R-2

R-2

R-3

R-1B

R-3
HY 96

E WISCONSIN AV

E GLENDALE AV

N 
OW

AIS
SA

 ST

N 
BA

LL
AR

D 
RD

E PACIFIC ST

E GLENDALE AV 1608 East Wisconsin Avenue
Special Use Permit

Automobile Sales and Display Lot
Zoning Map

Subject Area

Subject
Area

City Plan Commission
7-13-22

N 
CH

AR
LO

TT
E S

T

SIL
VE

RC
RE

ST
 D

R

FERBER ALLEY

WO
OD

ME
RE

 C
T

SILVERCREST DR

± 0 100 20050 Feet



1-2216

1-2215

1-2
61

9

1-2
62

0

1-2217
1-1

95
9

1-1962
1-2

60
7

1-2
60

9

1-1957

1-1958 1-1
96

0

1-2
60

4

1-1
96

1 1-2605

1-1218

14
02

14
08

1524

1531 1539 1601 1611

1608

161016001536

N 
WA

YN
E S

T

E AMELIA ST

E WISCONSIN AV

1608 East Wisconsin Avenue
Special Use Permit

Automobile Sales and Display Lot
Aerial Map

City Plan Commission
7-13-22± 0 100 20050 Feet

Subject Area



EV EV EV EVEV

E
E

E

E
E

E

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

S
T

O

S
T

O

S

T

O

S

T

O

S

T

O

>

 

o

 

o

 

o

> o o o

> o o o

> o o o

> o o o

> o o o

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

IP

NAIL

IP
IP

IP
IP

IP IP

X
X

X

X

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

STO

STO

STO

STO

T

T

T

T

X

ST

ST

WV

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
T

O

S
T

O
S

T
O

S
T

O
S

T
O

S
T

O

S
T

O
S

T
O

S
T

O
S

T
O

S
T

O

S
T

O
S

T
O

S
T

O
S

T
O

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

S

S
T

O

STO

STO

S

T

O

S

T

O

S
T

O

W W

G
G

WV

ST

WV

WV

NAIL

IP
IP

IP
IP

ST

O

H

W

O

H

W

O

H

W

O

H

W

O

H

W

O

H

W

O

H

W

ST

O
H

W
O

H
W

O
H

W
O

H
W

O
H

W
O

H
W

O
H

W
O

H
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

ASPHALT

ASPHALT

LARGE SIGN

AVIS CAR RENTAL

BUILDING

ASPHALT

GRAVEL

6
0
'
 
P

U
B

L
I
C

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

N
 
W

A
Y

N
E

 
S

T

50' PUBLIC STREET

E AMELIA ST

66' PUBLIC STREET

E WISCONSIN ST

RIM: 751.74

10" STEEL E: 747.14

RIM: 753.15

6" PVC : 751.35

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

CO
N

CR
ET

E 
SI

DE
W

AL
K

G
RA

SS

X

X

X

X

X

X

10" STEEL

6

"

 

P

V

C

RIM: 752.99

10" PVC: 748.66

WOOD FENCE

CHAIN LINK
FENCE

CHAIN LINK
FENCE

G
RA

SS

OVERHEAD
DOOR

ASPHALT

AS
P 

DR
IV

E

37' DRIVE
39' DRIVE

AS
PH

AL
T

SHED

S

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

FFE = 752.51

FFE = 752.47

37' DRIVE 24' DRIVE
RIM: 753.14

18" CON N: 744.04

30" CON W:743.29

RIM: 755.39

30" CON E: 745.24

RIM: 750.34

12" CON W: 742.04

18" CON S: 741.89

CO
N

C 
DR

IV
E

CONCRETE

GRASS

LANDSCAPE
AREA

G
RA

SS

GRASSGRASS

CO
N

CR
ET

E 
SI

DE
W

AL
K

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

CONCRETE SIDEWALK & TERRACE

STO
STO

STO
STO STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO STO STO
STO

CONCRETE SIDEWALK & TERRACE

X

GARAGE
GARAGE

CONCRETE

TERRACE

BUILDING AND

OVERHANG

ENCROACHES

8' 8' 9' 9'

20'

27.13'

37.09'
EXISTING

 DRIVEWAY
24'

EXISTING
 DRIVEWAY

39.11'
EXISTING

 DRIVEWAY

22'

9'
TYP

8'

8'

REPLACE CHAIN LINK FENCE
WITH 6 -FT HIGH WOODEN

SCREENING FENCE

3 SPACES

2 SPACES

10
 S

PA
CE

S

19'
TYP

10.99'

10.93'

EXISTING 6 -FT HIGH WOODEN
SCREENING FENCE

 PROPOSED 6 -FT HIGH WOODEN
SCREENING FENCE

PULL BOXES (4) AND
3" PVC CONDUIT (125')

FOR ELECTRICAL SERVICE
TO EV CHARGING STATIONS

PULL BOXES AND
3" PVC CONDUIT (73.5')

FOR ELECTRICAL SERVICE
TO EV CHARGING STATIONS

5-DUAL EV
CHARGING STATIONS (TYP)

EXISTING POWER POLE AND
GUY WIRE OVER EXISTING FENCE

10'

1.32'

45'

9'
TYP 18.5'

20.5'

9'
TYP23.67'

30'

18'
TYP

35.6'

12.31'

11.68'

CAR SALES DISPLAY AREA
AND SEASONAL TRUCK RENTAL

PARKING AREA

R4
.5

'

R4.5'

R3'
R10' R6'

R1
.5'

R4.5'

R3.5'

R5'

8'

5'

5'

1'

13.5'
11'

11'

10.83'

EX
IS

TI
N

G
DR

IV
EW

AY

33.18'

HC PARKING SIGN
W/VAN PLATE
MOUNTED ON POLE
OR BUILDING WALL

SWALE

EXTEND 6 -FT HIGH
WOODEN
SCREENING FENCE

4.85'

6.71'

4.89'

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X

XXX

X
X

X
X

XXX

X
X

X
X

X

REPLACE CONCRETE WALK PER
CITY OF APPLETON STANDARDS

STANDARD VERTICAL FACE
CURB & GUTTER 24-INCH

STANDARD VERTICAL FACE
CURB & GUTTER 24-INCH

REJECT VERTICAL FACE
CURB & GUTTER 24-INCH

REJECT VERTICAL FACE
CURB & GUTTER 24-INCH

20'

UNDERDRAIN 10-FT OUT
FROM INLETS AND MANHOLES (TYP)

REMOVE DRIVEWAY APRON
SAWCUT AND REPLACE WITH
STANDARD VERTICAL FACE
CURB & GUTTER 24-INCH
PER CITY STANDARDS

LIGHT POLE
(TYP)

LIGHT POLE
(TYP)

SNOW STORAGE AREA

FULL DEPTH SAWCUT OF CONCRETE PAVEMENT REQUIRED.
8-INCH CONCRETE PAVEMENT WITH INTEGRAL CURB AND
DOWELED PER CITY STANDARD DETAIL. AGGREGATE SLURRY
BACKFILL TO 2-FEET BEHIND CURB.

Checked:

Drawn:

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
 D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

COPYRIGHT NOTICE
THESE DRAWINGS AS INSTRUMENTS OF
SERVICE REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF PAYNE
& DOLAN, INC. ANY CHANGES,
PUBLICATION, OR UNAUTHORIZED USE IS
PROHIBITED UNLESS EXPRESSLY
AUTHORIZED BY PAYNE & DOLAN, INC.

Drawing Scale:

P&D Project No:

N
O

SH
EE

T 
TI

TL
E

PR
O

JE
CT

CL
IE

N
T

Sheet No.

Seal

w
w

w
.
w

a
l
b
e
c
g
r
o
u
p
.
c
o
m

(
9
2
0
)
 
7
5
7
-
7
5
5
9

A
 
W

A
L

B
E

C
 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

M
I
D

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
W

H
E

E
L

S
 
I
N

C
.
 

L
O

T
 
R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

C1

SCALE IN FEET

20' 40'0

PROPOSED LEGEND

4" ASPHALT PAVEMENT

HANDICAP PARKING

SIGN

THE LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITY INSTALLATIONS AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN
ARE APPROXIMATE. THERE MAY BE OTHER UNDERGROUND UTILITY
INSTALLATIONS WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA THAT ARE NOT SHOWN.
CONTRACTORS SHALL MAKE THEIR OWN DETERMINATION AND VERIFY THE THE
LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

THE CLIENT AND OR OTHER RECIPIENTS AGREE TO THE FULLEST EXTENT
PERMITTED BY LAW TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD PAYNE AND DOLAN HARMLESS
FOR ANY REUSE OF OR FROM CHANGES MADE TO THE ORIGINAL DRAWING OR
DATA WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT BY PAYNE AND DOLAN.

PROPOSED LIGHT POLES

Toll Free (800) 242-8511

Milwaukee Area (414) 259-1181

Hearing Impaired TDD (800) 542-2289

www.DiggersHotline.com

STO STO

EXISTING GAS LINE
EXISTING ELECTRIC UNDERGROUND
EXISTING TELEPHONE UNDERGROUND
EXISTING FIBER OPTIC UNDERGROUND
EXISTING WATER LINE

EXISTING STORM SEWER LINE
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

PROPERTY LINE
RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING FENCE

G G

E E

T T

FO FO

W W W

X X

S S

EXISTING BUILDING

MAJOR CONTOUR
MINOR CONTOUR
LANDSCAPE EDGING

LINETYPE LEGEND

EV

6' HIGH WOODEN SCREENING FENCE

PROPOSED ELECTRICAL PULL BOX

PROPOSED EV CHARGING STATION

> o o o

STO

MANHOLE

INLET

SITE DATA

ZONING - C-2 GENERAL COMMERCIAL

PARCEL:
 31-1-1962-00, 31-1-2607-00, 31-1-2605-00, 31-1-2609-00

LOT AREA = 46,331 SF, 1.064 ACRES
EXISTING IMPERVIOUS AREA  = 44,034 SF, 1.011 ACRES, 95.04%
PROPOSED  IMPERVIOUS AREA = 38,726 SF, 0.889 ACRES, 83.59%
EXISTING GREENSPACE = 2,297 SF, 1.288 AC, 4.96%
PROPOSED GREENSPACE = 7,605 SF, 0.175 AC, 16.41%

DISTURBED AREA = 42,062 SF, 0.965 AC

EXISTING PARKING SPACES NO SPACES MARKED
PROPOSED PARKING SPACES 5 SPACES (1 HC SPACES, WITH VAN PLATE)

BICYCLE PARKING WILL BE INSIDE THE GARAGE.

PROPERTY OWNER:
BILL WALLSCHLAEGER/JEREMIAH SCHWERSENSKA
MIDWESTERN WHEELS
2350 N CASALOMA DRIVE, SUITE 202
APPLETON, WI 54912
PHONE: 920-931-6200 / 920-931-0623
JEREMIAH.SCHWERSENSKA@MIDWESTERNWHEELS.COM

PLAN PREPARER: PAYNE & DOLAN
STEVE KOLAR
W6380 DESIGN DRIVE
GREENVILLE, WI 54942
920-757-7561
SKOLAR@WALBECGROUP.COM

PROP. STORM
 SEW

ER

PROP. STORM SEWER PROP. STORM SEWER

ST

IP

IR

DOWN SPOUT

INLET, CURB

ELECTRIC PEDESTAL
FIBER OPTIC MARKER
FIRE HYDRANT
FLOOD LIGHT

CLEANOUT
SIGN COLUMN
CATV PEDESTAL
BUSH
BOLLARD/LIGHTED

LIGHT POLE
FOUND IRON ROD

MAILBOX

PINE

INLET, ROUND

HOSE BIB

HANDICAP PARKING

GAS VALVE

SOIL BORING

FOUND IRON PIPE

STORM MANHOLE
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

SIGN

SANITARY MANHOLE

TREE
UTILITY POLE
WATER VALVE

TOPO SYMBOLS

WV

GUY WIRES

SNOW STORAGE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89%%D22'25"E   90.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00%%D19'30"W  89.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89%%D24'10"W   164.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00%%D28'21"E 149.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89%%D25'37"W    255.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00%%D13'55"E   240.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEVEN KOLAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENVILLE,

AutoCAD SHX Text
E-35047

AutoCAD SHX Text
2350 N CASALOMA DRIVE, SUITE 200 APPLETON, WI 54912

AutoCAD SHX Text
1608 E WISCONSIN AVENUE APPLETON, WI 

AutoCAD SHX Text
04/27/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
490576

AutoCAD SHX Text
748

AutoCAD SHX Text
750

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD VERTICAL FACE CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

kressdm
Text Box
RECEIVED
JUN  7  2022
CITY OF APPLETON
COMM/ECON DEV



EV EV EV EVEV

STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO

STO
STO

ST
O

ST
O

ST
O

> o o o > o o o > o o o

> o o o> o o o> o o o

X
X

X

X

TTTTTTTTTTT

STOSTOSTOSTO

T
T T T

ST

ST

WV

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

STO
STO

STO
STO

STO
STO

STO
STO

STO
STO

STO
STO

STO
STO

STO

STOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTOSTO

S

STO

STO STO

STO

STO

ST
O

W W

GG

WV

ST

WV

WV

NAIL

IP
IP

OHW

OHW

OHW

OHW

OHW

OHW

OHW

ST

O
H

W
O

H
W

O
H

W
O

H
W

O
H

W
O

H
W

O
H

W
O

H
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

WWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWW

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

G

FO FO FO FO FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO

AVIS CAR RENTAL

BUILDING

60
' P

U
BL

IC
 S

TR
EE

T
N

 W
AY

N
E 

ST

50' PUBLIC STREET
E AMELIA ST

66' PUBLIC STREET
E WISCONSIN ST

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

X
X

WOOD FENCE

CHAIN LINK
FENCE

CHAIN LINK
FENCE

OVERHEAD
DOOR

ASPHALT

SHED

S

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

GRASS

GRASSGRASS
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO

X GARAGE
GARAGE

CONCRETE

TERRACE

BUILDING AND
OVERHANG
ENCROACHES

ASPHALT

AS
PH

AL
T

ASPHALT

GAR

5/23/2022

1"=20'-0"

L100

20' 40'0

Horizontal Scale In Feet
LANDSCAPE PLAN

GAR

SHEET:

SCALE:

REVISED:

DATE:

DESIGN BY:

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECTURE

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T 
FO

R

treesonthemove.com

Phone: (262) 679-5200

5611 S. Calhoun Road
New Berlin, WI 53151

THIS DRAWING IS MADE SOLELY FOR THE INDIVIDUAL NAMES HEREIN AND IS PROPERTY OF TREES ON THE MOVE, INC. ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE OR DUPLICATOIN IS IN VIOLATION OF THE COPYRIGHT LAWS AND SUBJECT TO PROSECUTION

PLANTINGS, STRUCTURES AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONVEYING LANDSCAPE DESIGN FEATURES. REFER TO PREPARED CONTRACT DOCUMENTS FOR SPECIFIC ITEMS INCLUDED IN ANY PARTICULAR PHASE OF LANDSCAPE CONSTRUCTION.
RText (RText)

WISCONSIN'S LARGEST
TREE TRANSPLANTERS

M
ID

W
ES

TE
RN

 W
HE

EL
S-

LO
T 

RE
CO

NS
TR

UC
TI

ON

AP
PL

ET
ON

, W
IS

CO
NS

IN

DRAWN BY:

16
08

 E
AS

T 
W

IS
CO

NS
IN

 A
VE

.

Toll Free (800) 242-8511
Milwaukee Area (414) 259-1181

Hearing Impaired TDD (800) 542-2289
www.DiggersHotline.com

ex. evergreen
shrubs

sign

SEA GREEN
JUNIPER

ROYAL RED
MAPLE

STATE STREET
MAPLE

AY
5

MW
2

MW
1

CK
18

CK
18

JG
12

JG
12

SB
6

PD
3

PD
3

JG
12

SB
3

SB
3

ex. concrete
sidewalk & terrace

SNOW STORAGE

SB
3

TURF

TURF

TURF

ex. concrete
sidewalk & turf
terrace

AR
4

CK
6

ALUM. EDGE AT
BED/TURF (typ)

ANTHONY
WATERER SPIREA

SPRING SNOW
CRABAPPLE

KARL
FOERSTER
REED GRASS

LITTLE DEVIL
NINEBARK

light pole (typ)

TURF

TURF

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
GERARD A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REWOLINSKI

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLENDALE,

AutoCAD SHX Text
WI











 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner:  Midwestern Wheels, Inc.  c/o Bill Wallschaeger 

 

Applicant:  Payne & Dolan, Inc.  c/o Peter Nielson 

 

Address/Parcel:  1608 East Wisconsin Avenue (Tax Id #31-1-2605-00, #31-1-2609-00, #31-1-2607-00, 

and #31-1-1962-00) 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant is requesting approval of a Certified Survey Map (CSM) that 

crosses a plat boundary.  The CSM would combine four adjacent properties into one lot. 

 

BACKGROUND  ___________________________________________________  _ 

Typically, CSMs are administratively reviewed and approved by City staff.  However, the subject 

properties were originally platted in different plats.  Parcels #31-1-2605-00, #31-1-2609-00, and #31-1-

2607-00 were included in the Chas Besch Subdivision Plat (recorded in 1948), and parcel #31-1-1962-00 

was included in the Ullman’s Addition Plat (recorded in 1916).  In order to satisfy the requirements of 

Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin State Statutes, the proposed CSM must be approved in the same manner as 

a Final Plat, which includes Plan Commission and Common Council approval. 

 

Special Use Permit #7-22, to conform and expand an automobile sales and display lot on the subject 

property, is also being presented at this July 13, 2022 Plan Commission meeting.  Site Plan #19-22, for 

the proposed expansion and reconstruction of the automobile sales and display lot, has also been 

submitted for administrative review.  The proposed expansion of the structure would cross existing lot 

lines.  Therefore, all four subject parcels must be combined via CSM prior to expanding the automobile 

sales and display lot. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Existing Conditions:  Currently, parcels #31-1-2605-00 and #31-1-2609-00 are developed with an 

existing automobile/truck rental business and automobile sales and display lot, which includes an existing 

office/service building that is approximately 2,770 square feet in size.  Parcels #31-1-2607-00 and #31-1-

1962-00 feature a paved/gravel area that was previously used for a tavern.  The former tavern building 

was demolished in 2013.  All parcels have a zoning designation of C-2 General Commercial District.  If 

combined, proposed Lot 1 would be approximately 1.06 acres in size. 

 

Subdivision Ordinance Requirements:  Per Section 17-26(b)(1) of the Municipal Code, widths and 

areas of lots shall not be less than that provided in the City’s Zoning Ordinance.  For the C-2 General  

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  July 13, 2022 

 

Common Council Meeting Date:  July 20, 2022 

 

Item:  Certified Survey Map #21-22 

 

Case Manager:  David Kress, Principal Planner 

Community 

and Economic 

Development 

 



Certified Survey Map #21-22 

July 13, 2022 

Page 2 

 

Commercial District, the minimum lot width is 60 feet and the minimum lot area is 14,000 square feet, 

per Section 23-113(h) of the Municipal Code.  Proposed Lot 1 satisfies these lot development standards. 

 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses:  The surrounding area is under the jurisdiction of the City of 

Appleton (north, south, east, and west).  The uses are generally commercial and residential in nature. 

 

North:  R-1B Single-Family District.  The adjacent land uses to the north are currently single-family 

residential. 

 

South:  R-1B Single-Family District.  The adjacent land to the south is currently vacant and owned by 

Appleton Cemetery Association. 

 

East:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land uses to the east are currently a mix of 

commercial uses. 

 

West:  C-2 General Commercial District and R-1B Single-Family District.  The adjacent land uses to the 

west are currently a mix of commercial and single-family residential uses. 

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  Community & Economic Development staff has reviewed 

this proposal and determined it is compatible with the Commercial uses shown on the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map. 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the June 21, 2022 TRG agenda.  

Comments were received from participating departments and captured in the stipulations found below. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Based on the above, staff recommends that Certified Survey Map #21-22, as shown on the attached map, 

BE APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. On sheet 1, the name of the owner is incorrectly listed as “Appleton Property Ventures d/b/a 

Midwest Paper Group.”  Revise as necessary. 

 

2. Under the notes on sheet 1, there should be an additional deed document listed (Document No. 

948894 for parcel #31-1-2609-00). 

 

3. Under the Surveyor’s Certificate on sheet 2, there is a typo for the total square footage.  Revise to 

match the information listed on sheet 1.  It should be 46,332 square feet, not 146,332 square feet. 

 

4. Under the Surveyor’s Certificate on sheet 2, there is an incorrect reference to West Wisconsin 

Avenue.  It should be East Wisconsin Avenue. 

 

5. The final installment payment on all four parcels will need to be paid for Finance Department 

approval. 

 

 



Certified Survey Map #21-22 

July 13, 2022 

Page 3 

 

6. The Drainage Plan requirement for this CSM will be deferred and incorporated into the site plan 

review process. 

 

7. Spell check "thje" in the legal description on top of sheet 2. 

 

8. The bearing reference note shown in sheet 1 does not match the bearing shown between the 

section corners, revise as necessary. 

 

9. Minimum length for set monuments per city ordinance is 24”, revise as necessary. 

 

10. Provide offset distances to the exterior boundary for the building shown on the CSM. 

 

11. This CSM crosses the exterior boundary of a Plat, revise the CSM to meet the minimum 

requirements of §236.34(1)(dm) of the Wisconsin Statutes. 

 

12. Provide the diameter of found iron pipe monuments (i.d. or o.d.). 



1-2610-1
1-2

12
8

1-21761-2
12

9

1-2131 1-3
98

7-3
9

1-3
98

7-3
8

1-2617

1-2616

1-2615

1-2221

1-2222

1-2624

1-2623

1-2622

1-3987-74

1-2612

1-2611

1-2
63

6

1-2
63

5
1-2

63
3

1-2
63

4

1-3
98

7-2
7

1-3
98

7-2
5

1-2130

1-2
12

7

1-2177

1-2178

1-2179

1-2132

1-2133

1-2180

1-2181

1-2134

1-2134-1

1-2136

1-2182

1-2182-1

1-2183-1

1-2183
1-2184

1-2216

1-2215
1-2

61
9

1-2
62

0

1-2218

1-2217

1-2217-1

1-2219

1-2219-1

1-2618

1-2223

1-2223-1

1-2224

1-2614

1-2613

1-2632

1-2631

1-2630

1-2629

1-3987-61

1-3987-60

1-3987-59

1-3987-581-2628

1-2626

1-2625

1-3987-57

1-3987-75

1-3987-76

1-3
98

7-8
0

1-3
98

7-8
1

1-3
98

7-8
2

1-3
98

7-7
9

1-3
98

7-7
8

1-3
98

7-7
7

1-3
98

7-3
6

1-3
98

7-3
7

1-1
94

6-1

1-1
94

7-1

1-1
94

6

1-1
94

7

1-1
94

8

1-1
95

1

1-1954

1-1955

1-1
95

6

1-1
95

2
1-1

95
0

1-1
94

9

1-1
95

9

1-1962

1-2
60

7

1-2
60

9

1-1957

1-1958 1-1
96

0

1-2
60

4

1-1
96

1 1-2605

1-1043

1-1
04

5-5

1-1
04

5

1-1216 1-1217 1-1218

1-1
21

9-1

1-1
21

9-2

1-1219

1-1220

1-2
17

5

1-2627

13
19 13

19
13

11 13
14

13
20

14
05

14
09

14
15

14
19

14
25

14
31

15
06

15
01

15
07

15
13

14
02

14
04

14
10

14
16

14
13

14
19

14
2314

20

14
31

15
01

15
05

15
13

14
24

14
30

15
04

15
10

14
02

14
08

14
12

14
16 14

19
-2114

24
14

30
15

00

14
23

-25

15
08

15
12

15

12
-16

14
00

14
20

1419

14
03

14
09

-11
14

15
-17

1431 1437

1524

15
19

15
23

15
19

15
16 15

18

1718

1719

15
24

15
25

15
22

15
28

1718-20

1531 1539 1601 1611

17
-19

3-5

6-1
0

9-1
1

14201414

1713

17181714

1709

1708170016241608

1628161016001536

1514150815021430-321422

14
03

14
15

14
19

15
07

15
01

14
25

14
31

1434143014261422

14
06

14
20

14
26

14
32

14
38

15
00

E AMELIA ST

E WISCONSIN AV

N 
WA

YN
E S

T

N 
UL

LM
AN

 ST

R-1B

R-1B

C-2

P-I

R-2

R-2

R-3

R-1B

R-3
HY 96

E WISCONSIN AV

E GLENDALE AV

N 
OW

AIS
SA

 ST

N 
BA

LL
AR

D 
RD

E PACIFIC ST

E GLENDALE AV 1608 E. Wisconsin Avenue
Certified Survey Map #21-22 

Crosses Plat Boundary
Zoning Map

Subject Area

Subject
Area

City Plan Commission
7-13-22

N 
CH

AR
LO

TT
E S

T

SIL
VE

RC
RE

ST
 D

R

FERBER ALLEY

WO
OD

ME
RE

 C
T

SILVERCREST DR

± 0 100 20050 Feet



1-2216

1-2215

1-2
61

9

1-2
62

0

1-2217
1-1

95
9

1-1962
1-2

60
7

1-2
60

9

1-1957

1-1958 1-1
96

0

1-2
60

4

1-1
96

1 1-2605

1-1218

14
02

14
08

1524

1531 1539 1601 1611

1608

161016001536

N 
WA

YN
E S

T

E AMELIA ST

E WISCONSIN AV

1608 E. Wisconsin Avenue
Certified Survey Map #21-22 -- Crosses Plat Boundary

Aerial Map

City Plan Commission
7-13-22± 0 100 20050 Feet

Subject Area



kressdm
Text Box
RECEIVED
JUN  10  2022
CITY OF APPLETON
COMM/ECON DEV






	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_City Plan Minutes 6-8-22
	0002_1_ClassIIPublicHearingNoticeNewspaper_MidwesternWheels_SUP7-22
	0002_2_PublicHearingNoticeNeighborhood_MidwesternWheels_SUP7-22
	Sheets and Views
	1 Site Plan - SITE

	Midwestern-L100.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	L100



	0003_1_StaffReport_MidwesternWheels_SUP_For07-13-22
	Sheets and Views
	1 Site Plan - SITE

	Midwestern-L100.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	L100



	0004_1_StaffReport_1608EWisconsinAv_CrossingPlatBoundary_For07-13-22
	mw CSM-CSM 1
	mw CSM-CSM 2
	mw CSM-CSM 3


